
#plymcouncil

CITY COUNCIL

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Monday 27 February 2017
11 am
Council House, Plymouth

Members:
Councillor  Murphy, Chair
Councillor Sam Davey, Vice Chair
Councillors Mrs Aspinall, Ball, Mrs Beer, Bowie, Bowyer, Mrs Bowyer, Mrs Bridgeman, Carson, 
Churchill, Coker, Cook, Dann, Darcy, Philippa Davey, Deacon, Downie, Drean, Evans, Fletcher, 
K Foster, Mrs Foster, Fry, Hendy, James, Jordan, Kelly, Martin Leaves, Michael Leaves, 
Sam Leaves, Loveridge, Lowry, Dr Mahony, Mavin, McDonald, Morris, Nicholson, Parker-Delaz-
Ajete, Penberthy, Mrs Pengelly, Rennie, Ricketts, Riley, Singh, Smith, Sparling, Stevens, Storer, 
Jon Taylor, Kate Taylor, Tuffin, Tuohy, Vincent, Wheeler, Wigens and Winter.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

This meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting.  By entering the Council 
Chamber, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the 
recording for the webcast.

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 
webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy.

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 
process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive

Democratic and Member Support
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council
Ballard House
Plymouth  PL1 3BJ

Please ask for  Ross Jago
T 01752 304469
E Ross Jago, Senior Panel and 
Partnerships Adviser
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy
Published 17 February 2017

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


City Council

Agenda

1. Apologies  

To receive apologies for absence submitted by councillors.

2. Declarations of Interest  (Pages 1 - 2)

Councillors will be asked to make declarations of interest in respect of items on this 
agenda. A flowchart providing guidance on interests is attached to assist councillors.

3. Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan  (Pages 3 - 8)

Cabinet Member: Councillor Nicholson

The City Council will be asked to consider recommendations from Cabinet on the 
approval and submission arrangements for the Joint Local Plan (to follow).

The Cabinet minute (to follow) and report will also be submitted.

4. Plymouth Plan Refresh  (Pages 9 - 16)

Cabinet Member: Councillor Nicholson 

The City Council will be asked to consider recommendations from Cabinet on the 
approval of the Plymouth Plan refresh (to follow) as part of the Council’s Policy 
Framework.
 
The Cabinet minute (to follow) and report will also be submitted.



DECLARING INTERESTS – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

   No  Yes

No Yes

  

  

D
P
I

Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)?  This will include 
the interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):

 any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain
 any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor or the 

councillor’s election expenses from a Trade Union
 any land licence or tenancy they have in Plymouth
 any current contracts leases or tenancies  between the Council and them
 any current contracts leases or tenancies  between the Council and any organisation with land in 

Plymouth in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and 
securities

 any organisation which has land or a place of business in Plymouth and in which they have a 
relevant interest in its shares or its securities

What matters are being discussed?

P
r
i
v
a
t
e

I
n
t
e
r
e
s
t

Does the business affect the well-being or financial position of (or relate to the approval, consent, licence or 
permission) for:

 a member of your family or 
 any person with whom you have a close association; or
 any organisation of which you are a member or are involved in its management (whether or not 

appointed to that body by the council).  This would include membership of a secret society and 
other similar organisations.

Yes           No You can speak and vote

 

Yes No

Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid risk of allegations of corruption 
or bias

Declare interest and leave (or obtain 
a dispensation)

Declare the interest and speak and 
vote 

Will it confer an advantage or disadvantage on your family, close associate or an organisation 
where you have a private interest more than it affects other people living or working in the 
ward?

C
a
b
i
n
e
t

Cabinet members must declare and give brief details about any conflict of interest* relating to the matter to 
be decided and leave the room when the matter is being considered. Cabinet members may apply to the 
Monitoring Officer for a dispensation in respect of any conflict of interest.

*A conflict of interest is a situation in which a councillor’s responsibility to act and take decisions impartially, 
fairly and on merit without bias may conflict with his/her personal interest in the situation or where s/he may 
profit personally from the decisions that s/he is about to take.





PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan

Committee: Cabinet

Date: 27th February 2017

Cabinet Member: Councillor Nicholson

CMT Member: Anthony Payne (Director for Place)

Author: Jonathan Bell (Head of Development Planning)

Contact details Tel:  01752 304353
email: jonathan.bell@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref:

Key Decision: Yes 

Part: I

Purpose of the report:

The Plymouth Plan (Part One) was approved by Full Council in September 2015 as the single 
integrated strategic plan for the city.

At the time it was anticipated that a Part Two would be prepared which would include area and site 
specific policies, enabling the Plymouth Plan to become also the statutory development plan.

In January and February 2016, following a period of senior officer and member level discussion with 
South Hams and West Devon councils, the three authorities agreed to prepare a joint local plan for 
the three areas, called the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (JLP).  This decision was 
ratified by Plymouth’s Cabinet on 16 February 2016.

The Plymouth Plan Member Working Group (PPWG) has continued to meet and a new JLP Member 
Steering Group was also set up.  These groups have been overseeing the preparation of the JLP, and 
in respect of the PPWG a refresh of the Plymouth Plan which is required as a result of the JLP work.

The next steps are to publish a pre-submission JLP and the Plymouth Plan refresh.

The JLP will then be subject to a statutory six week period for formal representations to be made 
(March / April) and submitted for independent public examination (May).  Subject to a successful 
public examination (Autumn) it is anticipated that the JLP will be formally adopted early in 2018.

Once the JLP is formally adopted, the Plymouth-related policies will be re-united with the refreshed 
Plymouth Plan Part One policies, enabling the fully web based interactive Plymouth Plan to be re-
created, as originally envisaged.

The purpose of this report is to consider the approval and submission arrangements for the JLP.

The Corporate Plan 2016-19

PIONEERING PLYMOUTH – the  JLP and Plymouth Plan are ground breaking initiatives, creating 
both a single strategic integrated plan for the city and a pioneering joint planning approach across the 
entire Plymouth Housing Market Area with the adjoining councils.



GROWING PLYMOUTH – the JLP and Plymouth Plan have a strong focus on reinforcing and 
delivering Plymouth’s radical growth agenda.

CARING PLYMOUTH – between them , the JLP and Plymouth Plan between them provide 
integrated policies and a framework for delivery of a healthy and caring city. 

CONFIDENT PLYMOUTH  the JLP and Plymouth Plan set out a strategic framework for reinforcing 
Plymouth’s role in the region and firmly establishing Plymouth as an international city with great 
confidence and civic pride.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:    
Including finance, human, IT and land

The direct costs associated with the approval of this report relate primarily to the cost of an 
independent Public Examination into the Joint Local Plan, including associated evidence base, legal and 
management costs.

The cost of the Public Examination will be shared between Plymouth City Council, South Hams 
District Council and West Devon Borough Council.  Budget provision of £210,000 is made to cover 
Plymouth’s share of the costs, although the final cost will depend on the length of the examination 
and the nature of any issues raised by the Inspector.  

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management:

The JLP and the Plymouth Plan provides a strategic policy framework for both people and place. The 
creation of sustainable communities, and the theme of providing quality of life for everyone in the 
city, runs through the heart of the plans, providing an effective and integrated strategic framework for 
addressing and responding to issues such as community safety, community cohesion, child poverty 
and equalities and diversity.

Equality and Diversity

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?  Yes, as an integral element of the plan’s 
sustainability appraisal.

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

It is recommended that the Plymouth and South West Devon Local Plan be referred to a meeting of 
Full Council with the following recommendations:

1. That the Plymouth and South West Devon Local Plan be formally approved and subject to a 
six-week period for representations to be received, pursuant to Regulation 19 of the Town 
and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations.

REASON:  To ensure that an up to date planning framework is progressed for the Plymouth 
and South West Devon Housing Market Area in accordance with the Local Development 
Scheme.



2. That following the completion of the six-week period for representations the local plan be 
formally submitted for Public Examination.

REASON:  To ensure that an up to date planning framework is progressed for the Plymouth 
and South West Devon Housing Market Area in accordance with the Local Development 
Scheme.

3. That delegated authority to agree minor amendments to the Plymouth and South West 
Devon Joint Local Plan prior to its submission be given to the Assistant Director for Strategic 
Planning and Infrastructure, in consultation with the Joint Local Plan Member Steering Group.

REASON:  To enable a response to be made to matters identified through the six-week 
period for representations and therefore assist the public examination process.

4. That  the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan Steering Group continue to 
oversee the Joint Local Plan to ensure its effective monitoring and review, and that officers be 
instructed to draw up a revised Collaboration Agreement to this effect between West Devon 
Borough Council, South Hams District Council and Plymouth City Council, with responsibility 
delegated to the Assistant Director of Strategic Planning and Infrastructure for signing the 
Collaboration Agreement, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Strategic Housing, 
Transport, and Planning.

REASON:  To ensure that governance arrangements are in place for the joint local plan 
continues beyond adoption of the plan.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

Alternative development distribution strategies and site allocations were considered and appraised as 
part of the plan process.

Published work / information:

See Annex 4 of the JLP for evidence base reports.

Consultation response reports
 Crunch Time & Have your Say Summary Report (November 2016)
 Considerations Summary Report (January 2017)

Integrated assessment (including SA/SEA) of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 
(February 2017)
Draft Habitat Regulations Assessment: Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (February 
2017)
Local development scheme
'Deciding upon the distribution of development Topic Paper' (November 2016)

Background papers:

Exemption Paragraph NumberTitle Part 1 Part II
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/crunchtimenov2016.pdf
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/crunchtimenov2016.pdf
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/crunchtimenov2016.pdf
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/ppconsiderationssummaryreport.pdf
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/ppconsiderationssummaryreport.pdf
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/environmentandplanning/planning/planningpolicy/lds.htm
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/environmentandplanning/planning/planningpolicy/lds.htm
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/environmentandplanning/planning/planningpolicy/lds.htm
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/plymouthandsouthwestdevonjlptopicpaper.pdf
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/plymouthandsouthwestdevonjlptopicpaper.pdf


  

Sign off:  comment must be sought from those whose area of responsibility may be affected by the 
decision, as follows (insert references of Finance, Legal and Monitoring Officer reps, and of HR, 
Corporate Property, IT and Strat. Proc. as appropriate):

Fin SAFIN1
617 
163 16-
2-2017

Leg 2756
1/DV
S

Mon 
Off

275
6/1
DV
S

HR n/a Assets n/a IT n/a Strat 
Proc

n/a

Originating SMT Member  Paul Barnard (Assistant Director for Strategic Planning & 
Infrastructure)
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report?  Yes

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At its meeting of 16 February 2016 Cabinet agreed to work with West Devon Borough 
Council and South Hams District Council on a joint local plan (JLP) for the Plymouth Housing 
Market Areas, excluding land in Dartmoor National Park which will be considered in a 
separate local plan.

1.2 A Joint Local Plan Member Steering Group has overseen the preparation of the plan, including 
the completion of the plan’s evidence base, the delivery of public consultation exercises and 
the drafting of the plan’s text and policies map.

1.3 The plan is accompanied by a series of reports, including a sustainability appraisal, consultation 
statement and evidence and background reports that together underpin and justify its content.  

2.0 Spatial approach

2.1 The plan seeks to fully meet the objectively assessed housing and employment needs for 
Plymouth and South West Devon. This means delivering:

 26,700 new homes
 6,600 affordable homes
 312,700 sq.m new employment floorspace creating 13,200 new jobs in B ‘Use 

Class’ categories.

2.2 Spatially, Plymouth remains the primary focus of growth for the plan area, building on 
Plymouth’s well established growth area.  Particular attention is given in the plan to the three 
Growth Areas:

 City Centre and Waterfront
 Derriford and the Northern Corridor
 Eastern Corridor.

2.3 The spatial policies of the plan are structured around two key policy areas, which will have a 
consistent policy approach applied across them:

 Plymouth Policy Area  - which includes the city and its urban fringe, including 
Woolwell, Langage and Sherford in the South Hams.



 Thriving Towns and Villages Policy Area – which includes the main towns, towns 
and key villages, sustainable villages and wider countryside of West Devon and the 
South Hams.

2.4 The aim is to achieve a mutually supportive relationship between urban and rural areas, 
building on the character and strengths of the area. The prosperity of Plymouth and the rural 
communities are closely linked. A successful Plymouth will be beneficial to rural Devon (and 
indeed Cornwall too). It is equally true, though, that Plymouth's success as a regional city is 
dependent on the environmental, social and economic well-being of the wider rural area.

2.5 To address the development needs identified in the plan’s spatial strategy, the plan identified 
both development policies (to be applied to planning applications) and site allocation policies 
(which promote specific sites for development).  These include housing, employment, retail 
proposals as well as proposals for new sports, greenspace and other infrastructure.

3.0 Next steps

3.1 Subject to approval of the three councils, the plan will be subject to a statutory Regulation 19 
consultation from 15 March - 26 April.  This will provide an opportunity for interested parties 
to make representations for a planning inspector to consider at an independent public 
examination.  These comments received will also be reviewed by the three Councils, through 
the Joint Local Plan Steering Group, and where agreement can be reached this will be 
communicated to the inspector to assist him/her with their deliberations. 

3.2 It is anticipated that the public examination will take place in the early autumn, with adoption 
of the plan in winter 2017/18.  

4.0 Governance

4.1 The current collaboration agreement between the three councils provides for joint working 
until the plan is formally adopted.  However, there is a need to ensure that governance is in 
place beyond adoption, to enable the plan to be effectively monitored and reviewed.  

4,2 The Joint Local Plan Steering Group has proved a very effective vehicle for preparing the plan, 
and there will now be a need for further discussions between the three councils to determine 
the best way of continuing governance into the future.





PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: ‘Refresh’ of the Plymouth Plan 

Committee: Cabinet

Date: 27th February 2017

Cabinet Member: Councillor Nicholson

CMT Member: Anthony Payne (Director for Place)

Author: Jonathan Bell (Head of Development Planning)

Contact details Tel:  01752 304353
email: jonathan.bell@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref:

Key Decision: Yes 

Part: I

Purpose of the report:

The Plymouth Plan (Part One) was approved by Full Council in September 2015 as the single 
integrated strategic plan for the city.

At the time it was anticipated that a Part Two would be prepared which would include area and site 
specific policies, enabling the Plymouth Plan to become also the statutory development plan.

In January and February 2016, following a period of senior officer and member level discussion with 
South Hams and West Devon councils, the three authorities agreed to prepare a joint local plan for 
the three areas, called the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (JLP).  This decision was 
ratified by Plymouth’s Cabinet on 16 February 2016.

The Plymouth Plan Member Working Group (PPWG) has continued to meet and a new JLP Member 
Steering Group was also set up.  These groups have been overseeing the preparation of the JLP, and 
in respect of the PPWG a refresh of the Plymouth Plan which is required as a result of the JLP work.

The next steps are to publish a pre-submission JLP and the Plymouth Plan refresh.

The JLP will then be subject to a statutory six week period for formal representations to be made 
(March / April) and submitted for independent public examination (May).  Subject to a successful 
public examination (Autumn) it is anticipated that the JLP will be formally adopted early in 2018.

Once the JLP is formally adopted, the Plymouth-related policies will be re-united with the refreshed 
Plymouth Plan Part One policies, enabling the fully web based interactive Plymouth Plan to be re-
created, as originally envisaged.

The purpose of this report is to consider the approval of the Plymouth Plan refresh pending its re-
coupling with the Plymouth policies of the JLP once that plan is adopted.

The Corporate Plan 2016-19



PIONEERING PLYMOUTH – the JLP and Plymouth Plan are ground breaking initiatives, creating both 
a single strategic integrated plan for the city and a pioneering joint planning approach across the 
entire Plymouth Housing Market Area with the adjoining councils.

GROWING PLYMOUTH – the JLP and Plymouth Plan have a strong focus on reinforcing and 
delivering Plymouth’s radical growth agenda.

CARING PLYMOUTH – between them , the JLP and Plymouth Plan between them provide 
integrated policies and a framework for delivery of a healthy and caring city. 

CONFIDENT PLYMOUTH - the JLP and Plymouth Plan set out a strategic framework for reinforcing 
Plymouth’s role in the region and firmly establishing Plymouth as an international city with great 
confidence and civic pride.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:    
Including finance, human, IT and land

No new resource implications arise from this report.

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management:

The JLP and the Plymouth Plan provides a strategic policy framework for both people and place. The 
creation of sustainable communities, and the theme of providing quality of life for everyone in the 
city, runs through the heart of the plans, providing an effective and integrated strategic framework for 
addressing and responding to issues such as community safety, community cohesion, child poverty 
and equalities and diversity.

Equality and Diversity

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? An Equality Impact Assessment has already 
been undertaken for the Plymouth Plan Part One.

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

It is recommended that the Plymouth Plan Refresh be referred to a meeting of Full Council with the 
following recommendations:

1. That the updates set out in the report to Modules 2 (Philosophy), 3 (Vision), 5 (Healthy City), 
6 (Growing City) and 7 (International City) of the Plymouth Plan Part One be approved.

REASON:  To ensure that the Plymouth Plan reflects the most recent information

2. That following formal adoption of the Plymouth and South West Devon Local Plan, the 
Plymouth specific policies be combined with the Plymouth Plan refresh to re-create a single 
integrated web based document, with delegated authority to the Assistant Direction for 
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Strategic 
Housing, Transport, and Planning, to publish this on the Plymouth Plan website.



REASON:  In order to create a single integrated web based document (incorporating the 
adopted Plymouth-specific policies from the Joint Local Plan).

Alternative options considered and rejected:

Alternatives were considered at the time that the original report was considered in September 2015.  
No further alternatives considered as no change to the strategic direction is proposed.   

Published work / information:

Plymouth Plan Part One

Background papers:

Exemption Paragraph NumberTitle Part 1 Part II
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

  

Sign off:  comment must be sought from those whose area of responsibility may be affected by the 
decision, as follows (insert references of Finance, Legal and Monitoring Officer reps, and of HR, 
Corporate Property, IT and Strat. Proc. as appropriate):

Fin SAFIN1
617 
163 16-
2-2017

Leg 2765
0/DV
S

Mon 
Off

275
60/
DV
S

HR n/a Assets n/a IT n/a Strat 
Proc

n/a

Originating SMT Member  Paul Barnard (Assistant Director for Strategic Planning & 
Infrastructure)
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report?  Yes

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/plymouth_plan_part_one.pdf


1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Plymouth Plan Part One was formally approved by Full Council in September 2015 as the 
City’s single integrated strategic framework.  Since that time it has been used to drive the 
delivery of a healthy, growing and international city.

1.2 However, the decision to move to a joint local plan (JLP) for Plymouth, South Hams and West 
Devon means that some consequential amendments will be required to the Plymouth Plan.  

1.3 Furthermore, the Planning Inspectorate has advised that the development plan components of 
the Plymouth Plan be separated out from the non-development plan elements and included 
instead in the separate joint local plan. This is because non-development related policies 
should not be submitted for public examination as part of the local plan.

1.4 The need to amend the Plymouth Plan in these ways also presents an opportunity to update 
the policies, reflecting new and updated evidence / data (where this is available), together with 
emerging priorities for the City Council and its partners. 

1.5 However, it should be emphasised that this is not a full review of the Plymouth Plan and the 
strategic direction remains unaltered.

2.  Summary of changes to the Plymouth Plan

2.1 Tables 1 and 2 summarise the main changes proposed to the Plymouth Plan by module and by 
policy.

Table 1:  Summary of amendments to Plymouth Plan Part One by Module
Module Amendments
1. Introduction Updated to explain the relationship between the Plymouth Plan 

refresh and the JLP process.
2. Philosophy Retained as a Plymouth Plan only section; minor wording 

adjustments and text simplification; move Theme 2 (sustainable 
linked neighbourhoods) to JLP as new policy in spatial strategy 
section.

3. Vision Retained in Plymouth Plan but with minor wording clarifications; 
new Vision chapter to be created in JLP to provide strategic vision 
for entire plan area.

4. Plymouth’s strategic role Moved to JLP.
5. Healthy City Retained in Plymouth Plan.
6. Growing City Retained in Plymouth Plan.
7. International City Retained in Plymouth Plan.
8. Spatial Strategy Moved to JLP.
9. Delivery and monitoring New delivery and monitoring section in JLP; Plymouth Plan delivery 

and monitoring section will be redrafted once JLP is adopted to 
ensure it is consistent with the JLP monitoring framework which will 
be tested at public examination.

Table 2:  Summary of amendments to Plymouth Plan Part One by Policy
Policy Amendments
1 Enhancing Plymouth's strategic 
role

Moved to JLP - simplified to avoid duplication with later 
policies.

2 Unlocking Plymouth's regional 
growth potential

Moved to  JLP –re-phrased to read better as a development 
plan policy.



Policy Amendments
3 Utilising Plymouth's regional 
economic assets

Moved to JLP.

4 Enhancing Plymouth's strategic 
connectivity

Part of policy moved to JLP spatial strategy section and 
updated; part of policy moved to Growing City module in 
Plymouth Plan.

5 Protecting and strengthening 
Devonport Naval Base and 
Dockyard's strategic role. 

Moved to JLP – updated, and re-phrased to read better as a 
development plan policy.

6 Enhancing Plymouth's role in 
maintaining the south west's special 
natural environment 

Policy deleted – its purpose is covered by a new policy in the 
JLP spatial strategy section and by other changes to Plymouth 
Plan and JLP policies.

7 Safeguarding Plymouth's mineral 
resources

Moved to JLP - with further detail included in policy.

8 Addressing health inequalities and 
supporting healthy lifestyles

Retained – updated to add reference to improving health 
literacy and oral / dental health (change requested by 
partners); amended to create cross references to supporting 
JLP policies.

9 Delivering the best outcomes for 
children, young people and families

Retained - minor wording improvements and additional 
references relating to parents (change requested by partners).

10 Supporting adults with health and 
social care needs

Retained - minor clarification of policy.

11 Playing an active role in the 
community

Retained.

12 Delivering strong and safe 
communities and good quality 
neighbourhoods

Retained.

13 Delivering a safe, accessible, 
sustainable and health enabling 
transport system

Retained, but with cross references to JLP and some wording 
clarifications.

14 Optimising the health and 
wellbeing benefits of the natural 
environment

Retained, with minor improvement to the explanatory text.

15 Meeting Local Housing Needs Those elements of the policy relating to the role of the local 
planning authority moved to JLP; amended policy retained in 
Plymouth Plan.

16 Delivering accessible health 
services and clinical excellence

Retained.

17 Creating the conditions for 
Economic Growth

Retained, but with cross references to JLP.

18 Delivering sufficient land for 
new jobs

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

19 Delivering skills and talent 
development

Retained, but with cross references to JLP and updates to 
supporting narrative.

20 Delivering sufficient land for 
new homes to meet Plymouth's 
housing need

Policy principles retained in Plymouth Plan; substance of 
housing target moved to JLP and updated.

21 Provision for shops and services Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.
22 Using transport investment to 
drive growth

Substantial re-‐edit to reflect discussion on transport strategy 
at PPWG 9 November 2016, with refresh of strategic 
connectivity asks also included now in this section.



Policy Amendments
23 Enhancing Plymouth's sporting 
facilities

Retained, but with cross references to JLP.

24 Delivering Plymouth’s natural 
network

Retained and simplified, with development plan elements 
moved to JLP.

25 Reducing carbon emissions and 
adapting to climate change

Retained but with those elements of the policy relating to 
the role of the local planning authority moved to JLP.

26 Dealing with flood risk Retained but with those elements of the policy relating to 
the role of the local planning authority moved to JLP.

27 Minimising Plymouth's waste Retained but with those elements of the policy relating to 
the role of the local planning authority moved to JLP; plus 
wording updates.

28 Promoting Plymouth’s heritage Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.
29 Place shaping and the quality of 
the built environment

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

30 Safeguarding environmental 
quality, function and amenity

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

31 Implementing Britain’s Ocean 
City

Retained with new element to policy on celebrating the city’s 
coastal location, with new reference to fishing industry 
(change requested by partners).

32 Plymouth in the global market 
place

Retained.

33 Positioning Plymouth as a major 
UK Destination

Retained but with those elements of the policy relating to 
the role of the local planning authority moved to JLP.

34 Delivering a distinctive, dynamic 
cultural centre of regional, national 
and international renown

Retained, but with cross references to JLP.

35 Celebrating Plymouth's sporting 
excellence

Retained.

36 Enhancing Plymouth's 'green 
city' credentials

Retained.

37 Supporting world class 
universities and research 
institutions

Retained but with those elements of the policy relating to 
the role of the local planning authority moved to JLP.

38 Celebrating diverse 
communities

Retained.

39 Defining the spatial distribution 
of housing in Plymouth

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

40 Principles for development in 
Plymouth's urban fringe

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

41 Defining the spatial provision of 
retail development and main town 
centre uses

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

42 Improving Plymouth's city 
centre

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

43 Managing and enhancing
Plymouth’s waterfront

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

44 Strategic transport and other 
infrastructure measures to deliver 
the spatial strategy

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

45 Plymouth’s investment priorities Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.



Policy Amendments
46 Approach to development 
delivery and viability, planning 
obligations and the community 
infrastructure levy

Moved to JLP with amendments as appropriate.

3.  Conclusions

2.1 The vision of a single integrated strategic plan for Plymouth remains in place, but there has 
been a need to amend the route to achieving this in light of the JLP.  

2.2 Once the JLP is formally adopted, its Plymouth specific spatial policies will be re-united with 
the refreshed Plymouth Plan Part One policies so that a fully web based interactive Plymouth 
Plan can be re-created, as originally intended.




	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan
	4 Plymouth Plan Refresh

